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UNI TED STATES DI STRI CT COURT
DI STRI CT OF NEW JERSEY

- - - - - X
UNI TED STATES OF AMERI CA Hon. Dennis M Cavanaugh

V. Cr. No. 02-195(DM0)

18 U.S.C., Sections 1956,

RONDELL WARNER, 1959(a) (4) & (a)(5),
MARCEL SI MVONS, 1962(c), 1962(d) & 2,
ROBERTO SANTANA, 21 U.S.C. 88 841(a)(1), 846

alk/la “Mra,” & 861

TI MOTHY JOHNSON,
a/ k/a “Herman Johnson,”
a/ k/ a “Dashaun Bai sden,”
al k/a “Peanut,” and
RASHAWN Le GRANDE
al k/a “Bl ack,”

SUPERSEDI NG | NDI CTMENT

The Grand Jury in and for the District of New Jersey,
sitting at Newark, charges:

COUNT _ONE
(Racket eering Conspiracy)

1. At all times relevant to this Supersedi ng
Indictnent, in the District of New Jersey and el sewhere,
def endant s RONDELL WARNER, MARCEL SI MMONS, ROBERTO SANTANA
alk/a “Mra,” TIMOTHY JOHNSON, a/k/a “Herman Johnson,” al/k/a
“Dashaun Bai sden,” al/k/a “Peanut,” and others, were nenbers and
associates of a crimnal organization which, at tinmes, was known
and referred to, as Lex Mb, L.E. X. Mb, L.E X or Lexington
(hereinafter referred to as “Lex Mob”). Menbers and associ at es

of this crimnal organization engaged in acts of violence,



i ncludi ng nmurder, attenpted nmurder and conspiracy to conmt
nmurder as well as narcotics distribution and noney | aunderi ng.

2. Lex Mob, including its |eadership, nenbership and
associ ates, constituted an “enterprise,” as defined in Title 18,
United States Code, Section 1961(4), that is, a group of
i ndi vidual s associated in fact. This enterprise, which was
engaged in and the activities of which affected interstate and
foreign conmerce, constituted an ongoi ng organi zati on whose
menbers and associ ates functioned as a continuing unit for a
common pur pose of achieving the objectives of the enterprise.

Rol es of the Defendants

3. The defendants participated in the operation and
managenent of the enterprise; at times relevant to this
Super sedi ng | ndi ct ment :

a. def endant RONDELL WARNER was a | eader of the
enterprise who directed other nenbers of the enterprise in
carrying out unlawful and other activities in furtherance of the
conduct of the enterprise’s affairs;

b. under the direction of defendant RONDELL
WARNER, the nmenbers and associates of the enterprise, including
t he defendants herein, participated in unlawful and ot her
activities in furtherance of the conduct of the enterprise’'s

affairs.

The Racketeering Conspiracy




4. From at | east Septenber 1993 until the date of
this Superseding Indictnment, within the District of New Jersey
and el sewhere defendants

RONDELL WARNER,
MARCEL SI MVONS
ROBERTO SANTANA
alk/la “Mra,” and
TI MOTHY JOHNSON
a/ k/a “Herman Johnson,”
a/ k/ a “Dashaun Bai sden,”
a/ k/a “Peanut”
and ot hers, being persons enpl oyed by and associated with Lex
Mob, which engaged in, and the activities of which affected,
interstate and foreign comrerce, unlawfully, know ngly and
intentionally conspired to violate Title 18, United States Code,
Section 1962(c), that is to conduct and participate, directly and
indirectly, in the conduct of the affairs of the enterprise,
through a pattern of racketeering activity, as defined in Title
18, United States Code, Sections 1961(1) and 1961(5).

5. The pattern of racketeering activity through which
t he defendants agreed to conduct the affairs of the enterprise
consi sted of the acts set forth in paragraphs 15 through 22 of
Count Two of this Superseding Indictnment, which are incorporated
as if fully set forth herein. It was a further part of the
conspiracy that the defendants agreed that a co-conspirator would
commt at |east two acts of racketeering activity in the conduct

of the affairs of the enterprise.

Pur poses of the Lex Mob Crimnal Enterprise




6. The purposes of the enterprise included the
f ol | owi ng:

a. enriching the menbers and associ ates of the
enterprise through, anong other things, acts in violation of the
aws of the United States and the State of New Jersey invol ving
narcotics trafficking; nmurder; attenpted nurder; threats of
vi ol ence; the possession, carrying and use of firearns; noney
| aundering; and the tanpering and intimdation of w tnesses;

b. preserving and protecting the power and
i nfluence of the enterprise, its nmenbers and associ ates through
the use of acts in violation of the laws of the United States and
the State of New Jersey involving narcotics trafficking; nurder
attenpted nurder; threats of violence; the possession, carrying
and use of firearns; noney |aundering; and the tanpering and
intimdation of witnesses; and

C. pronoting and enhancing the enterprise and
the activities of its nenbers and associ at es.

Backagr ound

7. In or about 1993, defendant RONDELL WARNER, and
ot hers, including unindicted co-conspirators T.C. and L.H., were
involved in the distribution of narcotic drugs including cocaine
and heroin in the area of Bergen and Lexington Avenues in Jersey
Cty, New Jersey. 1In the later part of that year, a rival group
of drug deal ers becanme involved in a dispute with WARNER s group

regardi ng control over this drug | ocation.



8. Thi s dispute cul mnated in, anong other events,
def endant WARNER shooting an individual, T.S., in the neck at
cl ose range on or about Decenber 8, 1993 in the area of Bergen
and Lexi ngton Avenues in Jersey Cty, New Jersey.

9. Addi tionally, on or about January 24, 1994,
def endant WARNER assi sted an uni ndi cted co-conspirator in fleeing
the scene of a homcide commtted by L.H and T.C involving a
victim C. B., who was shot to death in Jersey City, New Jersey.

10. In this manner, and by the nmethods and neans set
forth bel ow, defendant RONDELL WARNER created, headed and
profited froma lucrative drug distribution enterprise known as
Lex Mob.

Met hods and Means of the Conspiracy

11. Anong the nethods and neans enpl oyed by nenbers
and associates of the enterprise in conducting the affairs of the
enterprise were those set forth in sub-paragraphs 11(a) through
(p) bel ow

a. defendant RONDELL WARNER used enforcers to
threaten, intimdate and shoot at rival drug dealers so as to
renove themfromthe area of Lexington and Bergen Avenues,
allowing Lex Mob and its nenbers to exert greater control over
this lucrative drug |ocation;

b. through the use of force and intimdation,
Lex Mob came to control the drug trade in the area of Bergen and

Lexi ngt on Avenues in Jersey City, New Jersey, anong other places;



c. Lex Mob nenbers at tines during the conspiracy
all eged herein allowed certain other drug dealers to sell near
their territory; however, Lex Mdb nenbers on occasion threatened,
assaul ted, attenpted to nurder and nurdered certain rival dealers
when their activity interfered with the business of Lex Mb and
its nenbers;

d. def endant WARNER had a regul ar source of
supply for powder cocaine |ocated in the Washi ngton Hei ghts
section of Manhattan, from whom Lex Mob nenbers routinely
purchased quantities of cocai ne;

e. after purchasing the powder cocaine in New
York, Lex Mob menbers brought the unpackaged cocai ne back to New
Jersey, where it was kept in “stash” apartnents in various
| ocations under the control of one or nore Lex Mb nenbers;

f. Lex Mob nmenbers “cut up” and “bottled” the
cocaine in individual vials (each of which contained
approximately .1 grans of cocaine) for sale on the street;

g. the bottled cocai ne was then brought fromthe
“stash” location to the sale location and then given to the hand-
t o- hand sellers, who sold the cocaine in different |ocations in
and around Jersey City, New Jersey;

h. menbers of Lex Mob at times utilized police
scanners and communi cated by nmeans of wal kie tal kies and cel | ul ar
t el ephones in order to nonitor and alert each other to the
presence of police and to otherwi se facilitate the sale of

narcoti cs;



i Lex Mob menbers had access to vehicl es which
they used to transport cocaine and to otherw se further the

busi ness of the organization and its nenbers, including the

f ol | owi ng:

i. a black N ssan Quest van registered to
J. W;

ii. a burgundy N ssan Quest van registered to
T.J.;

iti. a nodel year 2000 Jaguar S-Type owned
by def endant RONDELL WARNER but registered in the nanme of T.C
who is related to defendant RONDELL WARNER; and
i V. a nodel year 2001 Jaguar S-Type owned
by def endant RONDELL WARNER but registered in the nanme of T.C
who is related to defendant RONDELL WARNER
J - t he hand-to-hand sellers of the enterprise’s
narcotics, also known as hustlers or pitchers, were obligated to
pass a pre-established portion of the drug proceeds to one or
nore Lex Mob Lieutenants, whose responsibility was to collect the
proceeds on behalf of the organization;
k. a portion of these proceeds were passed on to
def endant RONDELL WARNER, who used this noney to further the
busi ness of Lex Mob as well as for his personal profit;
l. it was understood by nenbers of the
enterprise that a Lex Mob nenber who stole or |ost drugs or noney
bel onging to the enterprise m ght be punished in a violent

manner. Exanples of this practice include the follow ng:



i on or about April 14, 1996, defendant
RONDELL WARNER shot R R, a nenber of Lex Mb;

m nenbers of Lex Mob often carried firearns in
order to protect thenselves and to threaten others in order to
mai ntain the interests of the drug organi zation. For exanpl e:

i. in or about January of 2002, defendant
WARNER caused to be provided to a Lex Mb nenber a | oaded
Skor pi on sem -automatic assault rifle in order to patrol the area
around Lexi ngton and Bergen Avenues in Jersey City, New Jersey;

ii. on or about January 10, 2002, a nenber
of Lex Mob used a firearmto shoot at another person;

iii. on or about Decenber 21, 2001, a nenber
of Lex Mob possessed one | oaded .38 caliber handgun, which was
recovered by | aw enforcenent;

iv. on or about Septenber 15, 2001, a nenber
of Lex Mob was in possession of a | oaded firearm

v. on or about Septenber 29, 2000, nenbers
of | aw enforcenment recovered froma Lex Mb nmenber one | oaded .45
caliber firearmwhich was used to shoot at a police officer with
the Jersey City Police Departnent;

vi. on or about Cctober 19, 1999, defendant
ROBERTO SANTANA was in possession of a | oaded .380 caliber Lorcin
handgun;

vii. on or about August 23, 1999, defendants
MARCEL SI MMONS and TI MOTHY JOHNSON wer e each in possession of a



firearm and used these firearns in an effort to nurder another
person;

viii. on or about August 23, 1999, defendant
ROBERTO SANTANA was in possession of a firearm

i X. on or about August 15, 1999, defendant
MARCEL SI MMONS was in possession of a firearm and used that
firearmin an attenpt to murder another person;

X. on or about May 24, 1999, a Lex Mob
menber was in possession of a | oaded .380 caliber handgun;

Xi . on or about June 19, 1999, Rashawn
LeG ande was in possession of one |oaded .22 caliber revol ver;

Xii. on or about April 14, 1996, defendant
RONDELL WARNER was in possession of a | oaded firearm and used
this firearmto shoot another person;

Xiii. on or about Decenber 8, 1993,
def endant RONDELL WARNER was in possession of a |oaded firearm
and used that firearmto shoot another person;

n. def endant RONDELL WARNER regul arly enpl oyed
and used mnors, sone as young as fifteen years of age, to sel
narcotics on behalf of the Lex Mob drug organization and its
menbers;

0. def endant RONDELL WARNER enpl oyed and used
mnors to commt violent crines, including one or nore shootings,
on behalf of the Lex Mob drug organization and its nmenbers; and

p. menbers and associ ates of Lex Mbb and agents

of Lex Mob nmenbers at times intimdated and threatened potenti al



wi t nesses, and provided and offered to provide potenti al
wi t nesses with noney and things of value to influence the outcone
of judicial proceedings.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section
1962(d) .

COUNT _TWO
(Racket eeri ng)

12. The allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through
3 and 6 through 11 of Count One are hereby reall eged and
i ncorporated by reference as though set forth fully herein.

13. Fromat |east in or about 1993 through the date
of this Superseding Indictnment, in the District of New Jersey and
el sewhere, defendants

RONDELL WARNER,
MARCEL SI MVONS
ROBERTO SANTANA
alk/la “Mra,” and
TI MOTHY JOHNSON
a/ k/a “Herman Johnson,”

al/ k/ a “Dashuaun Bai sden,”
al k/a “Peanut”

10



bei ng persons enpl oyed by and associated with Lex Mb, which was
engaged in, and the activities of which affected, interstate and
foreign commerce, did know ngly conduct and participate, directly
and indirectly, in the conduct of the affairs of Lex Mb through
a pattern of racketeering activity, as defined in Title 18,
United States Code, Sections 1961(1) and (5), consisting of the
acts nore fully described in paragraphs 15 through 22 bel ow.

The Pattern of Racketeering Activity

14. The pattern of racketeering activity, as defined
in Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1961(1) and 1961(5),
t hrough which the defendants conducted the affairs of the
enterprise included, but was not limted to, the Racketeering
Acts set forth in Paragraphs 15 through 22 bel ow

RACKETEERI NG ACT ONE
(Attenpted Murder of T.S.)

15. On or about Decenber 8, 1993, in the area of
Bergen and Lexi ngton Avenues in Jersey City, New Jersey, within
the District of New Jersey and el sewhere, defendant RONDELL
WARNER di d knowi ngly and intentionally attenpt to cause the death
and serious bodily injury resulting in death of T.S., in
violation of N.J.S A Sections 2C 2-6, 2C 5-1 and 2C: 11-3(1) &
(2).

RACKETEERI NG ACT TWO
(Conspiracy and two Attenpts to Murder WW)

16. The defendants named bel ow comm tted the foll ow ng
acts, any of which alone constitutes the conm ssion of
Racket eering Act Two:
11



a. Conspiracy to Murder WW

Fromin or about June 1999 to on or about August
15, 1999, in the District of New Jersey and el sewhere, defendants
RONDELL WARNER, MARCEL SI MMONS and TI MOTHY JOHNSON, together with
others, willfully and knowi ngly conspired to cause the death and
serious bodily injury resulting in death of WW, in violation of

N.J.S. A Sections 2C:5-2 and 2C: 11-3(1) & (2).

b. Attenpted Murder of WW in June 1999

In or about June 1999, in the area of Bergen and
Lexi ngton Avenues in Jersey City, New Jersey, within the D strict
of New Jersey and el sewhere, defendant MARCEL SI MVONS did
know ngly and intentionally attenpt to cause the death and
serious bodily injury resulting in death of WW, in violation of
N.J.S. A Sections 2C 2-6, 2C:5-1 and 2C 11-3(1) & (2).

c. Attenpted Murder of WW on August 15, 1999

On or about August 15, 1999, at Jersey City, New
Jersey within the District of New Jersey, and el sewhere,
def endant MARCEL SIMMONS did knowi ngly and intentionally attenpt
to cause the death and serious bodily injury resulting in death
of WW, in violation of N.J.S. A Sections 2C 2-6, 2C 5-1 and
2C: 11-3(1) & (2).

RACKETEERI NG ACT THREE
(Conspiracy to Murder and Murder of WS.)

12



17. The defendants naned bel ow conmtted the
foll owi ng acts, any of which alone constitutes the comm ssion of
Racket eering Act Three:

a. Conspiracy to Murder Anot her Person

On or about August 23, 1999, in the D strict of
New Jersey and el sewhere, defendants RONDELL WARNER, MARCEL
SI MMONS, ROBERTO SANTANA and TI MOTHY JOHNSON, together with
others, willfully and knowi ngly conspired to cause the death and
serious bodily injury resulting in death of a person, in
violation of N.J.S A Sections 2C 5-2 and 2C 11-3(1) & (2).

b. Mirder of WS

On or about August 23, 1999, in the D strict of
New Jersey and el sewhere, defendants RONDELL WARNER, MARCEL
SI MMONS and TI MOTHY JOHNSON, together with others, purposely and
know ngly caused the death and serious bodily injury resulting in
death of WS., in violation of N.J.S. A Sections 2C 2-6 and
2C: 11-3(1) & (2).

RACKETEERI NG ACT FOUR
(Attenpted Murder of C.D.)

18. On or about January 10, 2002, in Jersey City, New
Jersey, in the District of New Jersey and el sewhere, defendants
RONDELL WARNER and MARCEL SI MMONS did know ngly and intentionally
attenpt to cause the death and serious bodily injury resulting in
death of C.D., in violation of N.J.S. A Sections 2C 2-6, 2C 5-1
and 2C 11-3(1) & (2).

RACKETEERI NG ACT FI VE
(Cocaine Distribution Conspiracy)

13



19. Bet ween in or about 1995 and in or about 2002,
within the District of New Jersey and el sewhere, defendants
RONDELL WARNER, MARCEL SI MMONS, ROBERTO SANTANA, TI MOTHY JOHNSON,
together with Rashawn LeG ande did knowi ngly and intentionally
conspire with each other and with others to distribute and
possess with intent to distribute five kilograns and nore of a
m xture and substance containing a detectable anpbunt of cocaine,
a Schedule Il narcotic drug controll ed substance, contrary to
Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(1) and
841(b) (1) (A (ii).

RACKETEERI NG ACTS SI X THROUGH EI GHT
(Cocai ne Sal es)

20. On or about the dates |isted below at Hudson
County, in the District of New Jersey, and el sewhere, the
foll owi ng defendant did knowingly and intentionally distribute
and possess with the intent to distribute, and aid and abet the
distribution of, a quantity of cocaine, a Schedule Il narcotic

drug controll ed substance, in the approxi mate anounts set forth

bel ow.

ACT DATE DEFENDANT( s) QUANTI TY
SI X 9/ 9/ 99 ROBERTO SANTANA 10 vials
SEVEN 3/ 1/ 00 ROBERTO SANTANA 15 vials
El GHT 5/ 24/ 00 ROBERTO SANTANA 22 vials

Each in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections
841(a)(1) and (b)(1)(C, and Title 18, United States Code,
Section 2.

RACKETEERI NG ACT NI NE

14



(Money Laundering Conspiracy)

21. From iIn or about March 1997, and continuing
through at least February 2002, in Hudson County, iIn the District
of New Jersey, and elsewhere, the defendant RONDELL WARNER and
others, knowing that the property involved in the financial
transaction represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful
activity, and knowing that the transaction was designed in whole
and In part to conceal and disguise the nature, location, source,
ownership, and control of property believed to be the proceeds of
specified unlawful activity, contrary to Title 21, United States
Code, Section 841, did conspire and agree to conduct a financial
transaction which 1n fact involved the proceeds of specified
unlawful activity, specifically the distribution of controlled
substances, contrary to Title 18, United States Code, Section
1956(a) (1) .-

Met hods and Means of the Mney Laundering Conspiracy

22. Anong the nethods and neans by whi ch def endant
RONDELL WARNER conspired wth others to | aunder narcotics
proceeds were the follow ng:
a. it was w dely understood by nenbers of Lex
Mob that the | eader of the enterprise, defendant RONDELL WARNER
arranged for bail noney to be paid to the Court to gain the
rel ease of Lex Mdb menbers arrested for selling the

organi zation’s narcoti cs;

15



b. on many occasions when a Lex Mob member was
arrested selling the organization’s narcotics, defendant RONDELL
WARNER arranged for the Lex Mob member’s bail to be paid by a
person other than himself so as to conceal or disguise the
nature, source, ownership, and control of the funds being used to
post bail;

C. on many occasions, defendant RONDELL WARNER
caused persons known to him to execute Hudson County Superior
Court documents in which these individuals falsely represented
that they were the “surety/depositor” of the bail funds for
various Lex Mob members, including, among many others, defendants
MARCEL SIMMONS, TIMOTHY JOHNSON, ROBERTO SANTANA, and Rashawn
LeGrande;

d. after being bailed out in the manner
described above, a Lex Mob member typically resumed selling
narcotics on behalf of the organization and otherwise facilitated
the organization’s drug distribution business.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section
1956(h) .

Al'l of which was in violation of Title 18, United
St at es Code, Sections 1962(c) and 2.

16



COUNT THREE
(Cocaine Distribution Conspiracy)

23. Fromin or about 1995 through in or about
2002, within the District of New Jersey and el sewhere, defendants
RONDELL WARNER,
MARCEL SI MVONS
ROBERTO SANTANA
alk/la “Mra,”
TI MOTHY JOHNSON
a/ k/a “Herman Johnson,”
a/ k/ a “Dashaun Bai sden,”
a/ k/a “Peanut,” and
RASHAWN L e GRANDE,
a/ k/ a “Bl ack”
did knowi ngly and intentionally conspire to distribute and
possess with intent to distribute five kilograns and nore of a
m xture and substance containing a detectable anpbunt of cocai ne,
a Schedule Il narcotic drug controll ed substance, contrary to
Title 21, United States Code, Sections 841(a)(1l) and
841(b) (1) (A (ii).
In violation of Title 21, United States Code,

Secti on 846.

17



COUNT FOUR
(Enpl oyment and Use of Persons Under
18 Years of Age in Drug Operations)

24. Fromin or about 1995 through in or about
2002, within the District of New Jersey and el sewhere, defendant
RONDELL WARNER

being a person of at |east eighteen years of age, did know ngly
and intentionally enploy, hire, use, persuade, induce, entice and
coerce, a person under eighteen years of age to distribute and
di spense and possess with intent to distribute and di spense a
controll ed substance, specifically cocaine, a Schedul e |
narcotic drug controll ed substance, contrary to Title 21, United
States Code, Sections 841(a)(1).

In violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section
861(a)(1).

18



COUNT _FI VE
(Murder Conspiracy)

25. The al |l egations contained in paragraphs 1
t hrough 3 of Count One are hereby reall eged and incorporated by
reference as though set forth fully herein.

26. At all tinmes relevant to this Supersedi ng
Indictnent, in the District of New Jersey and el sewhere, the
def endant s RONDELL WARNER, MARCEL SI MMONS, ROBERTO SANTANA, a/k/a
“Mra,” TIMOTHY JOHNSON, a/k/a “Herman Johnson,” a/k/a *Dashaun
Bai sden,” al/k/a “Peanut” and others, were nenbers and associ ates
of Lex Mob, as nore fully described in paragraphs 1 through 3 of
Count One. This crimnal organization constituted an enterprise
as defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section 1959(b)(2),
that is, a group of individuals associated in fact, which engaged
in, and the activities of which affected, interstate comerce.

27. At all tinmes relevant to this Supersedi ng
I ndi ctment, Lex Mob, through its nenbers and associ ates, engaged
in racketeering activity as defined in Title 18, United States
Code, Sections 1959(b) (1) and 1961(1), nanely acts invol ving,
anong ot her things:

a. acts involving murder under the | aws of the
state of New Jersey;
b. narcotics distribution, conspiracy to

commt narcotics distribution, and the enpl oynent and use of
persons under 18 years of age in a drug organi zation, in

violation of Title 21, United States Code; and

19



c. violent crinmes in aid of racketeering
activity and noney |laundering, in violation of Title 18, United
St at es Code.

28. On or about August 23, 1999 within the
District of New Jersey and el sewhere, defendants
RONDELL WARNER,
MARCEL SI MVONS
ROBERTO SANTANA
alk/la “Mra,” and
TI MOTHY JOHNSON
a/ k/a “Herman Johnson,”
a/ k/ a “Dashaun Bai sden,”
a/ k/'a “Peanut”
for the purpose of gaining entrance into, maintaining and
increasing their respective positions in Lex Mb, which
enterprise was engaged in racketeering activity, did conspire and
agree to cause the death and serious bodily injury resulting in
death of a person, contrary to N.J.S. A Sections 2C:11-3 and
2C: 2- 6.
In violation of Title 18, United States Code,

Sections 1959(a)(5) and 2.

COUNT _SI X
(Threatening to Commt a Crine of Violence)

29. The al |l egations contained in paragraphs 1

20



t hrough 3 of Count One are hereby reall eged and incorporated by
reference as though set forth fully herein.

30. At all times relevant to this Supersedi ng
Indictnent, in the District of New Jersey and el sewhere, the
def endant s RONDELL WARNER and MARCEL SI MMONS and ot hers, were
menbers and associ ates of the Lex Mdb crimnal organization, as
nore fully described in paragraphs 1 through 3 of Count One.
This crim nal organization constituted an enterprise as defined
in Title 18, United States Code, Section 1959(b)(2), that is, a
group of individuals associated in fact, which engaged in, and
the activities of which affected, interstate comerce.

31. At all times relevant to this Supersedi ng
I ndi ctment, Lex Mob, through its nenbers and associ ates, engaged
in racketeering activity as defined in Title 18, United States
Code, Sections 1959(b) (1) and 1961(1), nanely acts invol ving,
anong ot her things:

a. acts involving nurder under the | aws of
the state of New Jersey;

b. narcotics distribution, conspiracy to
commt narcotics distribution, and the enpl oynent and use of
persons under 18 years of age in a drug organi zation, in
violation of Title 21, United States Code; and

c. violent crinmes in aid of racketeering
activity and noney |laundering, in violation of Title 18, United

St at es Code.
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32. On or about June 13, 2001 within the
District of New Jersey and el sewhere, defendants

RONDELL WARNER and
MARCEL SI MMONS

for the purpose of gaining entrance into, maintaining and
increasing their respective positions in the Lex Mob enterpri se,
whi ch enterprise was engaged in racketeering activity, threatened
to commt a crine of violence against a person, contrary to
N.J.S. A Sections 2C: 12-3 and 2C. 2-6.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code,

Sections 1959(a)(4) and 2.

COUNT _SEVEN
(Attenpt to Commt Murder)

33. The al | egati ons contai ned in paragraphs 1

22



t hrough 3 of Count One are hereby reall eged and incorporated by
reference as though set forth fully herein.

34. At all times relevant to this Superseding
Indictnent, in the District of New Jersey and el sewhere, the
def endant RONDELL WARNER and ot hers were nenbers and associ ates
of the Lex Mob crim nal organization, as nore fully described in
par agraphs 1 through 3 of Count One. This crimnal organization
constituted an enterprise as defined in Title 18, United States
Code, Section 1959(b)(2), that is, a group of individuals
associated in fact, which engaged in, and the activities of which
affected, interstate conmerce.

35. At all times relevant to this Superseding
I ndi ctment, Lex Mob, through its nenbers and associ ates, engaged
in racketeering activity as defined in Title 18, United States
Code, Sections 1959(b) (1) and 1961(1), nanely acts invol ving,
anong ot her things:

a. acts involving nurder under the | aws of
the state of New Jersey;

b. narcotics distribution, conspiracy to
commt narcotics distribution, and the enpl oynent and use of
persons under 18 years of age in a drug organi zation, in
violation of Title 21, United States Code; and

c. violent crinmes in aid of racketeering
activity and noney |laundering, in violation of Title 18, United

St at es Code.
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36. On or about January 10, 2002, within the

District of New Jersey and el sewhere, defendant
RONDELL WARNER

for the purpose of gaining entrance into, maintaining and
increasing his position in the Lex Mb enterprise, which
enterprise was engaged in racketeering activity, did know ngly
and intentionally attenpt to cause the death of and serious
bodily injury resulting in the death of another person, contrary
to N.J.S.A Sections 2C: 2-6, 2C:5-1 and 2C 11-3(1) & (2).

In violation of Title 18, United States Code,
Sections 1959(a)(5) and 2.

COUNTS EI GHT THROUGH TEN
(Cocai ne Sal es)

37. On or about the dates listed bel ow, at
Hudson County, in the District of New Jersey, and el sewhere, the
foll owi ng defendant did knowingly and intentionally distribute
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and possess with the intent to distribute, and aid and abet the
distribution of, a quantity of cocaine, a Schedule Il narcotic

drug controll ed substance, in the approxi mate anounts set forth

bel ow
COUNT DATE DEFENDANT( s) JANTI TY
El GHT 9/ 9/ 99 ROBERTO SANTANA
alkla “Mra” 10 vials
NI NE 3/ 1/ 00 ROBERTO SANTANA 15 vials
alklia “Mra”
TEN 5/ 24/ 00 ROBERTO SANTANA 22 vials
a/k/a “Mira”

In violation of Title 21, United States Code, Sections
841(a)(1) and (b)(1)(C), and Title 18, United States Code,

Section 2.

COUNT _ELEVEN
(Money Laundering Conspiracy)

38. From iIn or about March 1997, and continuing
through at least February 2002, in Hudson County, iIn the District

of New Jersey, and elsewhere, the defendant
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RONDELL WARNER
and others, knowing that the property involved in the financial
transaction represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful
activity, and (A) with the intent to promote the carrying on of
specified unlawful activity, that is, the distribution of
narcotics, contrary to Title 21, United States Code, Section 841,
and (B) knowing that the transaction was designed In whole or iIn
part to conceal or disguise the nature, location, source,
ownership, and control of property believed to be the proceeds of
specified unlawful activity, did conspire and agree with others
to conduct and attempt to conduct a financial transaction which
in fact involved the proceeds of specified unlawful activity,
specifically the distribution of narcotics, contrary to Title 18,
United States Code, Section 1956(a)(1).

Met hods and Means of the Mney Laundering Conspiracy

39. Anmong t he met hods and neans enpl oyed by
def endant RONDELL WARNER and his co-conspirators to carry out the
conspiracy to | aunder narcotics proceeds were the foll ow ng:

a. It was wi dely understood by nenbers of Lex

Mob that the | eader of the enterprise, RONDELL WARNER, woul d
arrange for bail noney to be paid to the Court to gain the
rel ease of Lex Mdb menbers arrested for selling the
organi zation’s narcoti cs;

b. On many occasions when a Lex Mob member was

arrested selling the organization’s narcotics, defendant RONDELL
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WARNER arranged for the Lex Mob member’s bail to be paid by a
person other than himself so as to conceal or disguise the
nature, source, ownership, and control of the funds being used to
post bail;

C. On many occasions, defendant RONDELL WARNER
caused persons known to him to execute Hudson County Superior
Court documents in which these individuals falsely represented
that they were the “surety/depositor” of the bail funds for
various Lex Mob members, including, among many others, defendants
MARCEL SIMMONS, TIMOTHY JOHNSON, ROBERTO SANTANA, and RASHAWN

LeGRANDE;
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d. Shortly after being released from jail, a Lex Mob
member typically resumed selling narcotics on behalf of the
organization and otherwise facilitated the organization’s drug
distribution business.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section

1956(h) .

A TRUE BILL

FOREPERSON

CHRISTOPHER J. CHRISTIE
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY

28



